UNITED STATESDISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

Case No.

FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION,

Raintiff

V.

SLIM DOWN SOLUTION, LLC, SLIM
DOWN SOLUTION, INC., SST.
MANAGEMENT, INC., THE KARA
GROUP, LLC, RONALD ALARCON,
KATHLEEN ALARCON, MADERIA
MANAGEMENT, INC,,

POLY GLUCOSAMINE, LTD., AND
STEPHEN PIERCE,

Defendants.

COMPLAINT FOR PERMANENT INJUNCTION AND OTHER EQUITABLE RELIEF

Paintiff, the Federd Trade Commisson (“FTC” or “Commisson”), through its undersigned
attorneys, for its Complaint aleges.

1 Paintiff FTC brings this action under Section 13(b) of the Federd Trade Commission
Act (“FTC Act”), 15 U.S.C. 8 53(b), to secure temporary and preiminary injunctive rdief, a
permanent injunction, consumer redress, disgorgement, and other equitable relief againgt defendants for
engaging in unfair or deceptive acts or practices in connection with the advertisng, marketing, and sde
of products purporting to cause weight loss, in violation of Sections 5(a) and 12 of the FTC Act, 15
U.S.C. §8§ 45(a), 52.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE




2. This Court has jurisdiction over this matter pursuant to 15 U.S.C. 88 45(a), 52, 53(b)
and 28 U.S.C. 88 1331, 1337(a), and 1345.

3. Venuein this Digtrict is proper under 15 U.S.C. § 53(b) and 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b) and
(©.

THE PARTIES

4, Paintiff, the Federd Trade Commisson, is an independent agency of the United States
Government created by statute. 15 U.S.C. 88 41-58. The Commission enforces Section 5(a) of the
FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(a), which prohibits unfair or deceptive acts or practicesin or affecting
commerce. The Commission also enforces Section 12 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 52, which
prohibits fase advertisements for food, drugs, devices, services, or cosmeticsin or affecting commerce.
The Commission, through its own attorneys, may initiate federa district court proceedingsto enjoin
violations of the FTC Act and to secure such equitable relief, including consumer redress, as may be
appropriate in each case. 15 U.S.C. 8§ 53(b).

5. Defendant Sim Down Solution, LLC (*SDS’) isaHorida limited ligbility company with
its principa office or place of business at 2060 Boca Raton Boulevard, Boca Raton, Florida 33431.

At times relevant to the complaint, acting individualy or in concert with others, SDS has distributed and
sold Slim Down Solution to consumers throughout the United States. SDS transacts businessin the
Southern Didtrict of Florida

6. Defendant Sim Down Solution, Inc. (“SDS”) is a closdy-held Horida corporation

with its principa office or place of business at 2060 Boca Raton Boulevard, Boca Raton, Florida

33431. At timesrelevant to the complaint, acting individualy or in concert with others, SDSl has
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digtributed and sold Slim Down Solution to consumers throughout the United States. SDS transacts
business in the Southern Didtrict of Horida

7. Defendant S.S.T. Management, Inc. (“SST”) isaclosdy-held Florida corporation with
its principa office or place of business at 2060 Boca Raton Boulevard, Boca Raton, Florida 33431.
At times relevant to the complaint, acting individualy or in concert with others, SST has advertised and
marketed Sim Down Solution to consumers throughout the United States. SST transacts businessin
the Southern Didtrict of Florida

8. Defendant The KARA Group LLC (“KARA”) isalimited partnership organized under
the laws of Horidawith its principal office or place of business at 2060 Boca Raton Boulevard, Boca
Raton, Horida 33431. At times reevant to the complaint, acting individualy or in concert with others,
KARA has marketed and distributed Sim Down Solution to consumers throughout the United States.
KARA transacts business in the Southern Didtrict of Florida

9. Defendant Rondd Alarcon isa Managing Partner of SDS, Vice-President and
Treasurer of SDSI, Presdent, Vice-Presdent, Treasurer, and Secretary of SST, and manager of
KARA. With defendant Kathleen Alarcon, Mr. Alarcon jointly manages SDS, SDS, SST, and
KARA, and jointly owns 40% of SDS and 100% of SDSl and SST. At dl times revant to this
Complaint, acting individualy or in concert with others, Mr. Alarcon has formulated, directed, or
controlled the policies, acts, or practices of SDS, SDSI, SST, and KARA, including the acts or
practices dleged in this Complaint. He resides and/or transacts businessin the Southern Didtrict of
Florida

10. Defendant Kathleen Alarcon is a Managing Partner of SDS, President and Secretary of
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SDSl, and Chief Executive Officer of KARA. With defendant Ronald Alarcon, Ms. Alarcon jointly
manages SDS, SDSI, SST, and KARA, and jointly owns 40% of SDS and 100% of SDS| and SST.
At dl times rdevant to this Complaint, acting individualy or in concert with others, Ms. Alarcon has
formulated, directed, or controlled the policies, acts, or practices of SDS, SDSI, SST, and KARA,
including the acts or practices aleged in this Complaint. She resides and/or transacts businessin the
Southern Didtrict of Florida

11.  Defendants SDS, SDS, SST, KARA, Ronadd Alarcon, and Kathleen Alarcon have
operated a common business enterprise while engaging in the deceptive acts and practices dleged
below and are therefore jointly and severdly liable for said acts and practices.

12. Defendant Maderia Management, Inc. (“Maderid’) is a Texas corporation with its
principa office or place of business at 2453 North Pinewood Lane, Conroe, TX 77306. Maderiais
a0 the generd partner of defendant Polyglucosamine, Ltd. At times relevant to the complaint, acting
individudly or in concert with others, Maderia has advertised, marketed, distributed, and/or sold
purported welght-loss products containing D-glucosamine, including Sim Down Solution, to consumers
and resdllers throughout the United States. At times relevant to this Complaint, it has transacted
business in the Southern Digtrict of Florida. Maderia previoudy was known as Maderia, Inc.

13. Defendant Polyglucosamine, Ltd. isa Texas limited partnership with its principd office
or place of business at 2453 North Pinewood Lane, Conroe, TX 77306. At timesreevant to the
complaint, acting individualy or in concert with others, Polyglucosamine, Ltd. has advertised, marketed,
digtributed, and/or sold purported weight-loss products containing D-glucosamine, including Sim Down

Solution, to consumers and resdllers throughout the United States. At times relevant to this Complaint,
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it has transacted businessin the Southern Digtrict of Florida

14. Defendant Stephen Pierce is President of Maderia. Mr. Pierce manages and owns
defendants Maderia and Polyglucosamine, Ltd. At al times revant to this Complaint, acting
individudly or in concert with others, Mr. Pierce has formulated, directed, or controlled the policies,
acts, or practices of Maderia and Polyglucosamine, Ltd., including the acts or practices dleged in this
Complaint. At timesrelevant to this Complaint, he has transacted business in the Southern Didrict of
Florida

COMMERCE

15.  Theactsand practices of defendants dleged in this Complaint have been in or affecting
commerce, as“commerce’ is defined in Section 4 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. §44.

DEFENDANTS COURSE OF BUSINESS

SDS, SDSI, SST, KARA, Ronald Alarcon, and Kathleen Alarcon

16. Since a least August 2001, defendants SDS, SDSI, SST, KARA, Ronad Alarcon,
and Kathleen Alarcon (the “ SDS defendants’) have manufactured, labeled, advertised, offered for sde,
sold, and digtributed Slim Down Solution, a purported weight-loss product, to the public. The SDS
defendants primarily advertise and offer Sim Down Solution for sde through a 30-minute, nationdly-
disseminated televison infomercid. In the infomercid, the SDS defendants provide a toll-free
telephone number for consumersto cal to purchase Slim Down Solution. In addition, the SDS

defendants advertise and offer Slim Down Solution for sde through the www.dimdownsol ution.com

website. Further, the SDS defendants sl a Sim Down Solution continuity program, whereby they

automaticaly ship consumers Slim Down Solution and charge consumers' credit or debit card or bank
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account on a monthly bass.
Slim Down Solution

17. Sim Down Solution is atablet containing D-glucosamine. The SDS defendants charge
$59.95 plus $9.95 shipping and handling for a 60-tablet bottle of Sim Down Solution, a one-month
supply. From August 2001 through September 2002, gross sales of Sim Down Solution exceeded
$30 million.

18.  Toinduce consumersto purchase Sim Down Solution, the SDS defendants have
disseminated or caused to be disseminated a 30-minute televison infomercid; a company product

brochure and Internet advertisements on the webste www.dimdownsolution.com These

advertissments include but are not limited to the attached Exhibits A through D and contain, among
other things, the following statements or depictions:
a [EXCERPTSFROM INFOMERCIAL SCRIPT]

MALE ANNOUNCER: Introducing the Slim Down Solution. Thistotaly
new and unique weight management tool goes beyond dl the others because the active ingredient can
bind and diminate more fat than you ever thought possible.

MALE ANNOUNCER: Y ou can jumpgtart your weight loss program with guaranteed
results.

* * *

ON SCREEN: Slim Down!! Tablet One Tablet Can Eliminate 20 grams of Fat.
Lose Pounds And Inches In Weeks, Not M onths Guaranteed!

Lose 10 Pounds And 2 Inches In 30 Days Or Y our Money Back!

* * *

MALE ANNOUNCER: Onetiny Sim Down tablet can help diminate as much as 20
grams of fat. That can reduce the amount of fat in a cheeseburger with everything oniit to lessfat than a
plain turkey sandwich. In order to burn off that same number of caories, you would have to walk over
four miles
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* * *

MALE ANNOUNCER: Onetablet can help diminate as much as 20 grams of fat.
That can reduce the amount of fat in chicken nuggets and fries down to the fat in afresh garden sdad.

* * *

JOAN VAN ARK: Now, Corey, tell us, how does it work?

SPOKESPERSON: Wdll, fird, it's an incredible fat fighter, Joan. The active ingredient
attracts, isolates and separates some of the fat from your food. And then it surrounds, sequesters and
traps those fats so that they can be safely carried out of your system.

JOAN VAN ARK: Wél, now, can you explain to our viewers how that resultsin lost
inches and pounds?

SPOKESPERSON: Surel can. You see, your body must burn fat, Joan, to give you
energy. So, if you aren't bringing in enough new fat because Sim Down isisolating and trgpping much
of it, well, your body isforced to burn off the fat that's already stored and usualy in those unwanted
areas. By burning off the fat, you drop pounds and you drop inches.

SPOKESPERSON: Now, in order to get the same fat blocking potential as onetiny
Slim Down Solution tablet, you would have to take 16 chitosan capsules.

SPOKESPERSON: Ninety-eight percent of chitosan, what's right here, is non-reactive
and what that meansisthat only 2 percent of what you're taking in chitosan is actudly helping you to
fight fat. And that 2 percent is d-glucosamine.

JOAN VAN ARK: Ian't it true that you can adjust the amount of Sim Down you take
based on what you' re esting that day?

SPOKESPERSON: Yes, you can. You see Sim Down alows you to control your
lipid intake. If you know you' re going to be out at along med that’sloaded in fatty foods, well, you
know you're going to be tempted. Wadll, it'sok. Just take two Slim Down instead of one and eliminate
twicethe fat.

JOAN VAN ARK: So, Corey, this means that you can edt the things you like, the
cheesecakes and the hamburgers, or in my case, the chocolate.

SPOKESPERSON: Chocolate, yes.
JOAN VAN ARK: Yes. You don't have to always deny yoursdlf these pleasures?

SPOKESPERSON: No, you don't.
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* * *

MALE ANNOUNCER: Sim Down is designed to isolate, separate and eiminate much
of the fat from your favorite foods. Just onetiny Sim Down tablet can reduce the amount of fat ina
dice of chocolate cake down to the fat in afruit cocktall. And by diminating some of the fat from your
food, your body is forced to burn off the fat that’s dready stored on your belly, hips and thighs.

TRACY:: | had gained 62 pounds. | wanted to lose dl 62 pounds, and thanksto Sim
Down, | did. | fed likel can do anything now, and | went from asize 14 downto asize 3, and | fed
gredt.

KATHLEEN: If you're thinking about trying Sim Down, | highly recommend it. I've
logt 57 poundsin just over six months. | have gone from asize—amos asize 16 downto asize 6.

Y ou' ve seen my before pictures, you see me now. If it worksfor me, | am telling you, it will work for
you.

SPOKESPERSON: Wdll, you know, there are many diet programs and systems out
there. . . . But the onething they dl have in common isthat you have to change your lifestyle and your
egting habits for them to be successtul. . . . The Slim Down Solution doesn't require you to change
anything. That'sthe beauty of it. It's effortless.

SPOKESPERSON: Y ou don't need willpower with the Sim Down Solution because
within 60 to 90 seconds, it liquifies in your ssomach and is ready to absorb alot of fat.

UNIDENTIFIED FEMALE: | went down amost two whole sizes. The day you make
up your mind that you don’t want to be heavy any longer, you take your pill, you go to work, you
change nothing, nothing, and you get smdller.

JOAN VAN ARK: Okay, Corey, can you tell our viewers why they can trust the
testing that's been done on this product?

SPOKESPERSON: Absolutely. Let mefirgt say, Joan, that the maker of the Slim
Down Solution is the only manufacturer to submit this product to U.S. Government standardization
testing procedures for both purity and performance.

JOAN VAN ARK: So, in other words, the testing was done using U.S. Government
standards by someone who does not have afinancia interest in the product, say athird party?

SPOKESPERSON: That'sright. And what they did was to reconstruct the human
digestive system, if you can imagine that, and the process that it usesto digest fat. The results
demondirated that the active ingredient in the Sim Down Solution can bind a very large amount of fat.
In fact, take alook at this, Joan. Inthistiny tablet, up to 20 grams.
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[At various points throughout the infomercid, fine-print disclaimers gppear a the
bottom of the television screen stating that “Exercise and proper diet are required to lose weight” and
“Individua results may vary. These results may not be typica.”]

— Exhibit A, pp. 3-12, 15, 17, 20-22, pages from
infomercid script, and Exhibit B, infomercia tepe

b. [EXCERPTSFROM PRODUCT BROCHURE]

For decades, people al over the world have taken Chitosan for weight
loss. BUT the only active ingredient in Chitosan, [dc] is D-Glucosamine.

[D-glucosaming] has been proven in third party laboratory tests, [Sc] to isolate the fat
(lipids), in the dietary intake; [Sc] preventing that excess lipid from being digested. . . .

— Exhibit C, p. 3, page from product brochure
C. [EXCERPTSFROM INTERNET WEBSITE]

The Sim Down Solution is an incredible tiny tablet that contains D-

Glucosamine, apowerful, dl-naturd, fat magnet and trapper — refined, extracted, and concentrated —
into it's[sc] purest form. Onetablet can help diminate as much as 20 grams of Fat! [T]hat can
reduce the amount of fat in afast food cheeseburger with everything on it to lessfat than aplain turkey
sandwich. In order to burn off that same number of calories, you would have to walk over four miles.

Kathy Aaron [consumer endorser]: | went from asize 14 to asize 8. | have had great
results with Sim Down | would not do anything else. Y ou just fed o good you fed like you are doing
something without even knowing it.

Peggy Bass [consumer endorser]: I’ ve been able to carry on anormd life, norma
exercise, not doing anything out of the ordinary, and | am loang weight. | eat whatever | want, the fat
does't stay. Without the pain of dieting and without the starving or the strictness of adtrict diet | have
lost 25 pounds.

Dave Lankford [consumer endorser]: | redly haven't adjusted my eating habits and at
dl [s9¢]. Theonly thing | adjust isthe amount of Slim Down tablets| take. The more greag€] | eet the
moretablets | take. [T]helessgread€] | edt theless| take. It'samazing.

Jason Johnson [consumer endorser]: Thanksto Slim Down | went from a Size 36 back
down to my origind sze 30. you [9c] want something that fitsinto your lifestyle and does't change it
and that’ swhat Slim Down does.
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* * *

For decades, people al over the world have taken Chitosan, for weight loss. BUT the
only active ingredient in Chitosan, [dc] is D-glucosamine.

[D-glucosamine] has been proven in third party tests, [dc] to isolate the fat (lipids), in
dietary intake, preventing that excess lipid from being digested. . . .

— Exhibit D, p. 1-3, 13, 15, 17-18, pages of website
www.dimdownsolution.com

Sim Down Solution Continuity Program

19. Consumers may buy Slim Down Solution over the Internet or by cdling atoll-free
number. When a consumer cdls the toll-free number to order Sim Down Solution, the SDS
defendants, through their telemarketing agents, generdly ask the consumer to provide billing
information, such as a credit or debit card or bank account number, to pay for the order.

20. After obtaining the billing information to process a sdes transaction for Sim Down
Solution, the SDS defendants telemarketing staff attempts to persuade consumersto enroll in a
continuity program, whereby consumers agree to automatic monthly shipments of Sim Down Solution
for $49.95 plus $9.95 shipping and handling.

21. In many ingtances, the SDS defendants have enrolled consumers in the continuity
program without their consent. Approximately one month after receiving arequested shipment of Slim
Down Solution, the consumers unexpectedly recelve a second shipment. Subsequently, they learn that
their credit or debit card or bank account has been charged for the second shipment, without their
authorizetion.

22. In many instances, when consumers contact the SDS defendants seeking a refund for

the unauthorized shipment, they are instructed to return the unordered product in order to obtain a

Page 10 of 21



refund. When arefund ultimately is paid, the SDS defendants reimburse the consumers only the cost of
the Slim Down Solution product — not the cogt of shipping and handling. Furthermore, in many
instances, consumers are able to obtain the refunds only after complaining to the Better Business
Bureaul.

Maderia, Polyalucosamine, Ltd., and Stephen Pierce

23. Since a least January 2000, defendants Maderia and Stephen Pierce, and since at least
August 2001, defendant Polyglucosamine, Ltd. (together, the “Maderia defendants’) have
manufactured, |abeled, advertised, offered for sde, sold, and distributed products to the public,
including D-glucosamine products advertised for fat absorption and weight loss.

24.  The Maderia defendants sell some of these products directly to consumers, including
New Y ou 2000 and Krystalean. New Y ou 2000 contains liquid D-glucosamine and Krystal_ean
contains powdered D-glucosamine, like Slim Down Solution. Maderia charges consumers $29.95 for
a 2-ounce bottle of New Y ou 2000 (up to athirty-day supply) and $19.95 and $39.95, respectively,
for one-week and 15-day supplies of single-serving packets of Krystal_ean.

25.  The Maderiadefendants dso sdll their D-glucosamine products to other companies,
which then resdll the products to consumers under private labels such as Fight the Fat, Everdim 2000,
Mini Max, and Slim Down Solution.

26.  Toinduce consumers and resdlers to purchase its D-glucosamine products, the
Maderia defendants have disseminated or caused to be disseminated Internet advertisements on the

website www.polyalucosaminecom  These advertisements include but are not limited to the attached

Exhibit E and contain, among other things, the following statements or depictions
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[EXCERPTSFROM INTERNET WEBSITE]

New You 2000 for weight management. Just 28 drops (2 squirts) in your favorite
drink (non-dairy) will isolate up to 32 grams of ingested fat. . . .New You 2000 isaPURE D-
Glucosamine Weight Management, Concentrated Liquid Formula that enables you to control dietary
fats. ... Dosefor Dose, New You 2000 isolates 4 times M ORE fat than conventiond chitosan
tablets. One 2 ounce bottle has enough D-Glucosamine to isolate more than 2 POUNDS of dietary
fat.

PolyGlucosamine Reectivity is Concentrated. . . . “Concentrated’ means more fat
removal/isolation per dose, i.e. up to16 grams of fat isolation for Maderia’s Li[q]uid
Polyglucosamine versus up to 4 grams of fat isolation per recommended dose of typical chitosan
tablets.

Maderia’'s Liquid PolyGlucosamine is highly reective due to its Refined Form, and
is Concentrated for Efficdency and Economy to the user. This has been demonstrated by Separation
Tedswith Maderia Liquid PolyGlucosamine versus dry, powdered Chitosan. . .. Easier to use,
eader to take, no digestive problems, technicaly proven through research and andysis.

* * *
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Maderia
Fat A[b]sorption & Fat Reduction Products
For Dietary Applications

Maderia Liquid PolyGlucosamineadditionto15gr Fat  Maderia Liquid PolyGlucosamine (1cc) Reaction With
Emulsion Fat Emulsion

[ The above picture shows drops of D-glucosamine [ The above picture shows the same beaker as
being added to beaker previoudy pictured after the D-glucosamine
containing 15 grams of emulsfied fat.] isolated the fat from the rest of theliquid.]

* * *

How Much Is 15 Grams of Fat?

PG Dietary Fat Calorie Pounds Raw Pounds of Body
Equivalency Dietary Fat Weight
1CC 15 grams 135 Cdories 0.039 0.13
2CC 30 grams 270 Calories 0.078 0.26
60 CC (1Btl) 900 grams 8,100 Calories 2.34 7.8

* * *

Krystal ean enables the user to directly control his or her intake of fatsin the diet,
prior to them being processed, and stored in body tissues. . . . Krystal ean removesfat from dietary
intake. Removal rates are up to 10-12 grams per gram of product [packet]. ... Remova of dietary
fat [on ingestion] encourages the body to burn stored fat, thus potentia weight loss.

* * *

Independent and academic studies .. . . support the kinetics, and processes, as

presented in this description of . . . PolyGlucosamine.

— Exhibit E, pp. 14, 19, 20-21, 23-24, 27-28, web
pages from www.polyglucosamine.com (bracketed text
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added)
27. In addition, the Maderia defendants provided product claimsto the SDS defendants,
including but not limited to:
a In the find form, post extraction and refinement, we have a choice of either
making it liquid, or asolid. With the Ever Slim we had aliquid. With Sim Down we have a
solid. Same D-glucosamine, one with water, the other without water;
b. Sim Down is one of the easiest ways to hep reduce your fat intake;

C. Sim Down isthe ultimate dietary fat absorber;

d. Sim Down isolates, surrounds and binds some of the fat in your food and safey
cariesit out of your system; and

e Slim Down can absorb 9.5-16 times its own weight in some of the fat in your
food. Thefat it bindsisthen diminated as waste.

28. In addition, the Maderia defendants edited product claims made by the SDS
defendants in the Sim Down Solution infomercids.

THE FTC ACT

29. Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(a), prohibits unfair or deceptive acts or
practicesin or affecting commerce. Section 12(a) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 52(a), prohibits the
dissemination of any fase advertisement in or affecting commerce for the purpose of inducing, or which
islikely to induce, the purchase of food, drugs, devices, services, or cosmetics. For the purposes of
Section 12 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 52, Sim Down Solution and other D-glucosamine products
are either “foods’ or “drugs’ as defined in Sections 15(b) and (c) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. 88 55(b),
(¢). Asst forth below, defendants have engaged and are continuing to engage in such unlawful

practices in connection with the marketing and sde of Sim Down Solution and/or other D-glucosamine
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products for fat absorption and weight loss.

UNFAIR OR DECEPTIVE ACTSOR PRACTICES
INVIOLATION OF THE FTC ACT

COUNT |
False Claimsfor Siim Down Solution by the SDS Defendants

30.  Through the means described in Paragraph 18, above, the SDS defendants have
represented, expressy or by implication, that:

a Sim Down Solution causes subgtantia weight loss without caorie reduction or
exercise, enabling consumersto lose a least 10 pounds and 2 inches in 30 days,

b. Sim Down Solution causes weight loss even if consumers eat substantial
amounts of food high in fat, including hamburgers, chocolate, cheesecake, chicken nuggets,
french fries, cheeseburgers, and chocolate cake; and

C. Sim Down Solution isolates up to 20 grams of dietary fat per dose, then binds
it to be carried out of the body as waste.

31 In truth and in fact,

a Sim Down Solution does not cause subgtantia weight loss without caorie
reduction or exercise, enabling consumersto lose at least 10 pounds and 2 inchesin 30 days;

b. Slim Down Solution does not cause weight loss even if consumers est
subgtantial amounts of food high in fat, including hamburgers, chocolate, cheesecake, chicken
nuggets, french fries, cheeseburgers, and chocolate cake; and

C. Slim Down Solution does not isolate up to 20 grams of dietary fat per dose,

then bind it to be carried out of the body as waste.
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Therefore, the making of the representations set forth in Paragraph 30 congtitutes a deceptive practice,
and the making of fase advertisements, in or affecting commerce, in violation of Sections 5(a) and 12 of
the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. 88 45(a), 52.

COUNT I
Unsubstantiated Claimsfor Slim Down Solution by the SDS Defendants

32.  Through the means described in Paragraph 18, above, the SDS defendants have
represented, expresdy or by implication, that:

a Slim Down Solution causes subgtantia weight loss without caorie reduction or
exercise, enabling consumersto lose at least 10 pounds and 2 inchesin 30 days,

b. Sim Down Solution causes weight loss,

C. Slim Down Solution causes weight loss even if consumers eat substantia
amounts of food high in fat, including hamburgers, chocolate, cheesecake, chicken nuggets,
french fries, cheeseburgers, and chocolate cake; and

d. Slim Down Solution isolates up to 20 grams of dietary fat per dose, then binds
it to be carried out of the body as waste.

33.  The SDS defendants did not possess and rely upon a reasonable basis that
substantiated the representations set forth in Paragraph 32, above, at the time the representations were
made. Among other reasons, the human studies relied upon by the SDS defendants did not test D-
glucosamine, the active ingredient in Sim Down Solution, placed subjects on low (1000 per day)
caorie diets, and were improperly controlled. Therefore, the making of the representations set forth in

Paragraph 32, above, condtitutes a deceptive practice, and the making of fase advertisements, in or
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affecting commerce, in violation of Sections 5(a) and 12 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. 88 45(a), 52.

COUNT I
False Establishment Claim for Slim Down Solution by the SDS Defendants

34.  Through the means described in Paragraph 18, above, the SDS defendants have
represented, expressy or by implication, that independent laboratory testing using U.S. government
gtandards prove that Sim Down Solution binds dietary fat in the human digestive system.

35. In truth and in fact, independent laboratory testing using U.S. government standards
does not prove that Sim Down Solution binds dietary fat in the human digestive sysem. Therefore, the
making of the representation set forth in Paragraph 34, above, congtitutes a deceptive practice, and the
meaking of false advertisements, in or affecting commerce, in or affecting commerce, in violation of
Sections 5(a) and 12 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. 88 45(a), 52.

COUNT 1V
Unauthorized Billing by the SDS Defendants

36. Through the means described in Paragraphs 19 through 22, above, in numerous
ingtances, in connection with the advertising, promotion, marketing, offering for sale, sde, or digtribution
of Slim Down Solution, the SDS defendants have caused charges for automatic shipmentsin the Sim
Down Solution continuity program to be billed to a consumer’s credit card or debited from a
consumer’ s bank account without the consumer’ s knowledge or authorization.

37.  The SDSdefendants practice of causing charges to be billed to a consumer’ s credit
card or debited from a consumer’ s bank account without the consumer’ s knowledge or authorization
has caused or islikely to cause substantia injury to consumers that is not reasonably avoidable by

consumers themsdaves and is not outwelghed by countervailing benefits to consumers or to competition.

Page 17 of 21



Therefore, the SDS defendants' practice, as dleged in Paragraph 36, is unfair and violates Section 5(a)
of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(a).

COUNT V
False Efficacy Claim for D-glucosamine Products by the Maderia Defendants

38.  Through the means described in Paragraph 26, above, the Maderia defendants have
represented, expresdy or by implication, that their D-glucosamine products isolate up to 16-20 grams
of dietary fat per dose, then bind it to be carried out of the body as waste.

39. In truth and in fact, their D-glucosamine products do not isolate up to 16-20 grams of
dietary fat per dose, then bind it to be carried out of the body aswaste. Therefore, the making of the
representation set forth in Paragraph 38 condtitutes a deceptive practice, and the making of afase
advertisement, in or affecting commerce, in violation of Sections 5(a) and 12 of the FTC Act, 15
U.S.C. §8 45(a), 52.

COUNT VI
Unsubstantiated Efficacy Claims for D-glucosamine Products by the M aderia Defendants

40.  Through the means described in Paragraph 26, above, the Maderia defendants have
represented, expressy or by implication, that:
a their D-glucosamine products cause weight loss; and
b. their D-glucosamine products isolate up to 16-20 grams of dietary fat per dose,
then bind it to be carried out of the body as waste.
41.  The Maderia defendants did not possess and rely upon areasonable basis that

substantiated the representations set forth in Paragraph 40, above, at the time the representations were
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made. Among other reasons, the human studies relied upon by the Maderia defendants did not test D-
glucosamine, placed subjects on low (1000 per day) cdorie diets, and were improperly controlled.
Therefore, the making of the representations set forth in Paragraph 40, above, condtitutes a deceptive
practice, and the making of false advertissments, in or affecting commerce, in or affecting commerce, in
violation of Sections 5(a) and 12 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. §8 45(a), 52.

COUNT V11
False Establishment Claim for D-glucosamine Products by the M aderia Defendants

42.  Through the means described in Paragraph 26, above, the Maderia defendants have
represented, expresdy or by implication, that independent and academic studies prove thet its D-
glucosamine products absorb dietary fat thereby causing weight loss in humans.

43. In truth and in fact, independent and academic tudies do not prove that their D-
glucosamine products absorb dietary fat thereby causing weight lossin humans. Therefore, the making
of the representation set forth in Paragraph 42, above, congtitutes a deceptive practice, and the making
of fse advertisements, in or affecting commerce, in or affecting commerce, in violation of Sections 5(a)
and 12 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. 88 45(a), 52.

COUNT VIII
Providing the M eans and | nstrumentalities for Deception by the Maderia Defendants

44, By providing the SDS defendants with the claims described in Paragraphs 26 and 27,
above, the Maderia defendants furnished the means and instrumentdities to the SDS defendants to
engage in deceptive acts or practices, including the dissemination of certain of the statements set forth in
Paragraph 18, above, in violation of Sections 5(a) and 12 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. §8 45(a), 52.

INJURY
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45.  Consumers throughout the United States have suffered and continue to suffer substantial
monetary loss as aresult of defendants unlawful acts or practices. In addition, defendants have been
unjustly enriched as aresult of their unlawful practices. Absent injunctive relief by this Court,
defendants are likely to continue to injure consumers, regp unjust enrichment, and harm the public
interest.

THISCOURT'SPOWER TO GRANT RELIEF

46. Section 13(b) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 53(b), empowersthis Court to grant
injunctive and such other relief as the Court may deem appropriate to halt and redress violations of the
FTC Act. The Court, in the exercise of its equitable jurisdiction, may award other ancillary relief,
including consumer redress, consumer education, disgorgement, and restitution, to prevent and remedy
injury caused by defendants law violations.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, plaintiff requests that this Court, as authorized by Section 13(b) of the FTC
Act, 15 U.S.C. § 53(b), and pursuant to its own equitable powers:

(1) Award plaintiff temporary and preliminary injunctive relief as may be necessary to avert the
likelihood of consumer injury during the pendency of this action and to preserve the possbility of
effective find rdief;

(2) Enjoin defendants permanently from violating Sections 5 and 12 of the FTC Act, in
connection with the advertisng or sde of food, drugs, devices, cosmetics, or other products, services
or programs,

(3) Award such equitable rdlief as the Court finds necessary to redress injury to consumers
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resulting from defendants' violations of the FTC Act, including but not limited to redress, refund of
monies paid, or disgorgement of ill-gotten gains, and

(4) Award plaintiff the cogts of bringing this action and any other equitable relief the Court may
determine to be just and proper.
Dated: Respectfully submitted,

WILLIAM E. KOVACIC
Generd Counsd

JANET M. EVANS
KAREN MUOIO
SERENA VISWANATHAN (FL Bar # A5500649)
FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION
600 Penn. Ave., NW, Room S-3126
Washington, D.C. 20580
Tel.: (202) 326-2125(IME), -2491(KM), -3244(SV)
Fax: (202) 326-3259
Emall: jevans@ftc.gov,
kmuoio@ftc.gov,
sviswanathan@ftc.gov
Attorneys for Plantiff
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